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RFP NHDOC 10-05-GFMED Clinical Laboratory Services 
 

Questions and Answers 
 
Exhibit A, Scope of Services 
 
Question # 1, Page 1 of 7, Section 1, 1.3:  Please verify the length of the pricing on the Contract.  Is 
pricing held at the original Contract price if the Contract is renewed for Year 3 and 4 or re-negotiated? 
 
Answer # 1:  The pricing is held at the original contract price for any renewals thereof for Year 3 & 4 and 
are not renegotiated. 
 
Question # 2, Page 1 of 7, Section 1.1.3:  What tests are required by NH State law? 
 
Answer # 2: The tests are not required by NH State law but are ordered based on policy and standards of 
care practice.  Most common tests are done on initial medical intake which includes a comprehensive 
metabolic panel, CBC with/diff, RPR, UA, and if over the age of 50 get a PSA. 
 
Question # 3, Page 1 of 7, Section 1.1.5.2:  What training will be required by the phlebotomists? 
 
Answer # 3: Basic phlebotomy training and on the equipment supplied by Vendor. 
 
Question # 4, Page 1 of 7, Section 2:  For the three units located at 281 North State Street, will each unit 
require having their specimens picked-up individually or will they be combined at a central location for a 
single pick-up for 281 North State Street? 
 
Answer #4: NHSP-Men in Concord – Has a lock box on the second floor over by our pharmacy; Secure 
Psychiatric Unit – Has a locked box in refrigerator in the zone used to access the Unit. 
 
Question # 5, Page 1 of 7, Section 2 and Page 2 of 7, Section 6:  Will specimen pick up only coincide 
with when phlebotomy services are performed, or is it anticipated that DOC staff will also provide 
phlebotomy services and require specimen pick-up at other times? 
 
Answer # 5:  No specimen pick up may not coincide with phlebotomy services as indicated in Exhibit A, 
Scope of Services, Page 1 of 7, Section 2: Retrieval Sites of Samples/Specimens and Exhibit A, Scope of 
Services, Page 2 of 7, Section 6: Phlebotomist Services: 
 

Section 6.1: Phlebotomist services will be provided by the Vendor two (2) times per week for the 
Northern Correctional Facility (NCF) Berlin, NH, three (3) times per week for the NH State 
Prison for Men (NHSP-M) to include once (1) a week for the Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU), 
once (1) a week at the Special Housing Unit (SHU), Concord, NH and two (2) times per week at 
the NH State Prison for Women (NHSP-W) of the RFP due to the need for Stat labs and 
negotiating a mutually agreed upon schedule with the Vendor awarded the contract to meet the 
needs of laboratory services. 
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Question # 6, Page 1 of 7, Section 2.1:  What is the current number of daily specimen pick ups from each 
facility (pick ups outside of the routine collection days)? 
 
Answer # 6:   
 
Yearly Based on CY 2009 

Northern Correctional 
Facility 

NHSP-Men – Concord Secure Psychiatric Unit NHSP-Women –
Goffstown 

Daily Pick up via a 
Currier and a 
phlebotomist comes 3 
times a month. 

Six (6) Six (6) Thirty-six (36) 

 
Question # 7, Page 1 of 7, Section 2.1:  Is the retrieval of specimens required seven (7) days/week? 
 
Answer # 7:  As per RFP as indicated in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Page 1 of 7, Section 2: Retrieval 
Sites of Samples/Specimens  
 

Section 2.1:  The retrieval of samples/specimens from the NH Department of Corrections 
retrieval sites must be available on a daily basis as part of the service provided by the Vendor. 
Section 2.2: Retrieval times are to be determined between the Vendor and each NH Department 
of Corrections site. 

 
Question # 8, Page 1 of 7, Section 2.2:  If there is a specimen to be picked up, where is the specimen 
located, at the front entrance or in the medical facility? 
 
Answer # 8:  All boxes are property of the current vendor.  
 

Northern Correctional Facility- Has locked boxes in lobby; 
 

NHSP-Men Concord – Have a lock box on the second floor over by our pharmacy; 
 

Secure Psychiatric Unit – Has a locked box in a refrigerator in the zone used to access the facility; 
 

NHSP-Women keep the blood in Health services and will bring down to the front door all lab 
specimens to the currier when they arrive for pick up. 

 
Question # 9, Page 2 of 7, Section 5.1:  What is the expectation of turn around time for the NCF, Berlin, 
NH, facility for both stat and routine specimens? 
 
Answer # 9:   

Stat labs for the Northern Correctional Facility have been provided via the local hospital with 
results in two (2) hours; 
 
Routine- The earliest report is twenty-four (24) hours from pick up. 
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Question # 10, Page 2 of 7, Section 6:  What are the hours for phlebotomy services? 
 
Answer # 10:  As per RFP as indicated in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Page 2 of 7, Section 6: 
Phlebotomist Services: 
 

6.1. Phlebotomist services will be provided by the Vendor two (2) times per week for the 
Northern Correctional Facility (NCF) Berlin, NH, three (3) times per week for the NH State 
Prison for Men (NHSP-M) to include once (1) a week for the Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU), 
once (1) a week at the Special Housing Unit (SHU), Concord, NH and two (2) times per week at 
the NH State Prison for Women (NHSP-W). 
6.2. The on-site days of the Phlebotomist will be determined by the NH Department of 
Corrections. If the NH Department of Corrections nurses perform venipuncture, there will be no  
special preparations of the specimen, i.e. no slide preparations or other lab preps such as 
transfer of specimens from one tube to another. 
6.3. Phlebotomist will be on site for a maximum of three (3) hours per session per site. 
6.4. Phlebotomist services shall be inclusive of collection time and training. 

 
Question # 11, Page 2 of 7, Section 6.1: 

 
Question # 11a:  What is the current number of stat draws outside of the normal collection days at 
each facility? 

 
Question # 11b:  What is the current number of patients drawn at each facility either by week or 
month? 
 
Answer # 11a:  Monthly average is one (1) per site per month. 

 
Answer # 11b:  Monthly Average Based on CY2009 – Patient Draws 

 Northern Correctional 
Facility 

NHSP-Men – 
Concord 

Secure Psychiatric 
Unit 

NHSP-Women –
Goffstown 

130 380 45 69 

 
 
 
 
Question # 12, Page 2 of 7, Section 6.1:  Does this include weekends and holidays? 
 
Answer # 12:  The schedule will be negotiated upon awarding the Contract. 
 
Question # 13, Page 2 of 7, Section 6.2:  Will nurses routinely perform the venipuncture? 
 
Answer # 13:  Nurses routinely will draw bloods when phlebotomists are not available. 
 
Question # 14, Page 3 of 7, Section 9:  Why does the Vendor provide venipuncture training if the Vendor 
is providing the phlebotomists? 
 
Answer # 14:  Because the phlebotomists are not available twenty-four (24) hours/day. 
 
 
 
Question # 15: Page 3 of 7, Section 10.1:   
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Question # 15a:  Is this a “will call” in addition to the services identified in attachment A, Page 2, 
Section 6.1?   
 
Question # 15b:  If so, what are the hours necessary to provide these services? 

 
Answer # 15a & b:  This is meant to reference an on-site liaison for the Vendor as well as a Stat 
lab request person. 

   
Question # 16:  Page 3 of 7, Section 10.3:  Where are the specific NH regulations listed? 
 
Answer # 16:   This is in regards to our policies against contraband and other non-approved items within a 
correctional institution as well as inappropriate conduct with offenders. 
 
Question # 17:  Page 3 of 7, Section 10.9:  Are phlebotomists/lab personnel required to be licensed in 
NH?   
 
Answer # 17:  No 
 
Question # 18:  Page 3 of 7, Section 10.10:  Are there credentials/licenses/certificates required for 
phlebotomy/lab testing in NH? 
 
Answer # 18:  The NH Department of Corrections requests resumes including 
credentials/licenses/certification of the phlebotomy staff assigned to the Contract. 
 
Question # 19:  Please expand upon the level of training needed for the nurses at the facilities:   
 

Question # 19a:  Does this include basic phlebotomy training or only training on phlebotomy 
equipment supplied, or will this be an overview of general specimen collection? 
 
Question # 19b:  Is the training held at out facility or yours? 
 
Question # 19c:  Are we responsible for training all staff who collect or will there be a “train the 
trainer” person appointed? 
 
Question # 19d:  If your staff is provided with phlebotomy training and determined to be 
competent, will your staff be responsible if there is an issue with a phlebotomy? 
 

Answer # 19: 
 

Answer # 19a:  Basic phlebotomy training and on the equipment supplied by Vendor. 
 
Answer # 19b:  Training is done at our facilities. 

 
Answer # 19c: You will train staff that need the training. 

 
Answer # 19d:  Yes, if the draw was done by our staff. 
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Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Exhibit A-1, Page 1 of 2, Section 1: 
 
Question # 20, Exhibit A-1, Page 1 of 2, Section 1:   
 

Question # 20a:  Should the Drug screens listed on Exhibit A-1 include confirmation testing as 
part of the fee, or do you want that to be a separate fee listed for the screen panel and 
confirmation by GC/MS per analyte?   
 
Question # 20b:  Is the current contract for laboratory services available for review? 
 
Question # 20c:  What is the required TAT for these tests? 
 

  Answer #20a: Confirmation testing should be part of the fee. 
  

Answer #20b: Yes 
 

Answer #20c:  The NH Department of Corrections currently experiences an average TAT for 
most tests of 1.5 days.  

 
 
 


